
 

ADDENDUM #1 
 

September 8, 2022  

RFP Title: Data Governance Solution 

Human Resources Management System Owner: County of Wake – Melissa England, Procurement 

RFP Bid No.:   #22-082 

  

The following items provide answers to questions that were submitted for RFP #22-082.  Wake County answers are 
in blue. 
 

1. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (like,from India or Canada) 
 Wake County requires that all data be stored, transmitted, or processed within the US, including 
 any backups or copies stored for disaster recovery purposes. 
2. Whether we need to come over there for meetings? 
 Demostrations and meetings will be conducted virtually. 
3. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or Canada) 
 Wake County requires that all data be stored, transmitted, or processed within the US, including 
 any backups or copies stored for disaster recovery purposes. 
4. Can we submit the proposals via email? 

 Responses for this RFP are not eligible for electronic submission. 

5. Can the platform be provided with minimal customization that we implement per your specific 
requirements? 

 Yes, that can be an option. 

6. Can you please mention the size of existing data in – (TB, GB, MB) and its anticipated growth rate?  

 Data sources are still in the identification phase and are unable to be accurately estimated at 
 this time. Use minimum as 1 TB and please have proposal identify how increases would be 
 performed. 

7. Do you have any preference in terms of hosting (On-prem/Private-cloud or Vendor-hosted)? 

 Wake County will consider solutions that are cloud-based or hosted internal to the county with 
 no preference. Selection will be based on the ability of the vendor to meet the County's 
 mandatory security and infrastructure requirements in the RFP. 

8. Can you please list the no of 3rd party systems and its type that need to be integrated with the 
portal? 



 Wake County's technological environment will not be disclosed publicly. As part of the review 
 process, vendors will be given that information on an individual and as needed basis. Wake 
 County has the expectation that the proposed solution would be flexible enough to support 
 integration with various 3rd party systems and data sources. 

9. Are there any requirements to handle streaming data? 

 Steaming data is not a requirement at this time but is a nice to have feature. 

10. Will data be provided clan and formatted? 

 Data is in structured and unstructured formats and will be within accepted data quality 
 parameters. 

11. Can you please specify the estimated no. of users and their roles and types (Internal/External users) 
interacting with the system? 

 All users will be internal. We will have approximately 4 admins and 10 contributors. Viewers are 
 yet to be determined. 

12. Do you expect the system to process any specific ML algorithms? 

 No specific ML is required at this time. 

13. Do you expect the system to have manual data entry/input future to update or modify any records? 

 Yes, we expect this feature. 

14. Do you have any defined Data Quality metrics? If yes, can you please provide the data quality 
parameters? 

 Data quality policies and procedures are currently in draft. 

15. Do you expect vendors to submit 9 verifiable references for this project? or three verifiable 
references to the proposed solution itself acceptable? 

 See RFP Section 3.3.7 - we are asking for: 

 (3) verifiable references of the vendor’s proposed solution that has been operational for a 
 minimum of 90 days, preferably a local government that is comparable in size to Wake County.  
 (3) previous clients within the last year that are no longer using your proposed solution.  
 
 If you propose using 3rd party contractors, we need (3) verifiable client references for  each of 
 those 3rd party contractors. 

16. Is it mandatory to submit all the documents listed in the section of “3.3.9 Sample Documents 
(Proposal Section 9.0)” along with the response proposal? Do you consider submitting some of the 
documents during the contract negotiation as those are considered confidential and proprietary 
information? 

 Vendors are encouraged to submit all requested sample documents as part of their proposal. 
 Any documents considered confidential or proprietary should be marked in accordance with 
 Section 5.17 of the RFP. 

17. What is the anticipated implementation timeline? 

 Implementation timeline is dependent on tool selected. Per schedule outlined in the RFP vendor 
 selection to be completed in November. 



18. Is there any budget limit fixed for this project? 

 There is an approved budget for this project, however we will not disclose the specifics of 
 that budget. A proposer’s initial offer should be based on the most favourable terms available. 
 The County may, however, have discussion with those proposers that it deems in its discretion 
 to fall within a competitive range. It may also request revised pricing offers from such proposers 
 and make an award and/or conduct negotiations thereafter.  

19. Can the platform be offered with an annual license model? 

 A proposer’s initial offer should be based on the most favourable terms available. The County 
 may, however, have discussion with those proposers that it deems in its discretion to fall within 
 a competitive range. It may also request revised pricing offers from such proposers and make an 
 award and/or conduct negotiations thereafter.  

20. Please provide the number of resources we will scan including Databases, BI Tools, File Systems, and 
ETL Tools.  We need the total count (quantity), not just the platform types.  Ideally, we'd like to get 
an estimate for the number of records per system, table, etc. If number of records cannot be 
provided, we use a default of 42,667 metadata records per source (based on customer averages) 

 Data sources are still in the identification phase and are unable to be accurately estimated at 
 this time. Use minimum as 1 TB and please have proposal identify how increased would be 
 performed. 

21. Please provide the number of users that will create and/or edit business metadata content like 
glossary entries, policy entries, process entries.  We estimate IPUs based on an average of 237 
assets per users.   

 All users will be internal. We will have approximately 4 admins and 10 contributors. Viewers are 
 yet to be determined. 

22. Please provide the number of users that will publish data assets for consumption on the Data 
Marketplace.   We estimate IPUs based on the number of assets published and orders placed for 
access to them.  Typically, it is 5 or 10 users, but could be more. 

 All users will be internal. We will have approximately 4 admins and 10 contributors. Viewers are 
 yet to be determined. 

23. During the COVID-19 pandemic, most government organizations we worked with switched to 
electronic submissions only (i.e., through vendor portals, not USB). Please confirm whether Wake 
County will also accept electronic submissions through email or a vendor portal. 

 Responses for this RFP are not eligible for electronic submission. 

24. Please clarify whether vendors are to complete Attachment C as a supplier-provided file, or if 
vendors are to create this attachment separately. This file was not supplied with the RFP package. 

 Vendors are to create this separately. 

25. Are there data acceptance criteria in place?  Data correction? 

 Data quality policies and procedures are currently in draft. 

26. Are data assets currently managed through a formal data governance program? 

 Yes, we have a formal data governance program for enterprise resources. 



27. Is the County seeking professional consulting services to assist in developing data governance 
processes? 

 No, not at this time. 

28. Are documented data governance processes operational? 

 Yes, we have a formal data governance program for enterprise resources. 

29. Are data governance roles formally defined?   Including data stewards?  Including data management 
support? 

 Formally defined data governance roles are: data custodian, data steward, data administrators, 
 data users - read and data users - build. 

30. Are data governance decisions and activities that align to program objectives defined? 

 Yes, we have a formal data governance program for enterprise resources. 

31. Have policies and procedures for metadata capture, approval, updating, and provisioning been 
drafted?  Approved? 

 Yes, we have a formal data governance program for enterprise resources. 

32. Have policies and procedures for data quality (profiling, baseline, rules, and remediation) been 
drafted?  Approved? 

 Data quality policies and procedures are currently in draft. 

33. Are you looking for technical and business metadata to live in the same repository? 

 If possible, yes, for ease of lineage. 

34. What is the purpose of the data catalog?  Who are the intended users and what do they intend to 
get out of the data catalog?   

 Per RFP: The goals of this program are to increase data discoverability,  
 increase confidence in data and increase the reusability of data. Intended users are those with a 
 defined data governance role. 

 
35. In your functional requirements, there is discussion of logs, reports, data owners, metadata models, 

etc.  Do you expect all of that information to be in your catalog?  

 Yes, we expect a comprehensive solution to include this or like information. 

36. What kind of annotations are you wanting to add to your catalog objects? 

 The ability to add tags, comments, rate or reviews. 

37. Can you give an example of an out-of-the-box specific regulation and how you would like users to 
interact with that regulation? 

 This is an optional feature, to support and monitor things like GDPR and CCPA. 

38. Can you give an example of a custom classification category? 

 The ability to use our own data classification definitions in the terms that have been approved 
 through our governance councils. 

39. What departments/groups will be supported?  What are the personas of the end users? 



 This is to support the entire organization. For this purpose, there will be 3 roles: administrators, 
 contributors, viewers. 

40. Where does the county’s data reside? 

 Wake County's technological environment will not be disclosed publicly. As part of the review 
 process, vendors will be given that information on an individual and as needed basis. Wake 
 County has the expectation that the proposed solution would be flexible enough to support 
 integration with various 3rd party systems and data sources. 

41. How many data sources are there? 

 Data sources are still in the identification phase and are unable to be accurately estimated at 
 this time. Use minimum as 1 TB and please have proposal identify how increased would be 
 performed. 

42. Can you explain meta model in more detail? 

 Refers to the ability to add relationships between entities. 

43. Can you quantify the number and type of Data Sources that need to be included? 

 Data sources are still in the identification phase and are unable to be accurately estimated at 
 this time. Use minimum as 1 TB and please have proposal identify how increased would be 
 performed. Wake County's technological environment will not be disclosed publicly. As part of 
 the review process, vendors will be given that information on an individual and as needed basis. 
 Wake County has the expectation that the proposed solution would be flexible enough to 
 support integration with various 3rd party systems and data sources. 

44. How many people will be creating and curating the data? 

 All users will be internal. We will have approximately 4 admins and 10 contributors. Viewers are 
 yet to be determined. 

45. How many people will only view the data? 

 This will be determined based on the licensing model of the selected application. 

46. Is your preference on site or Cloud based? Says SaaS in RFP but questions on Exhibits show on 
premise questions. 

 Wake County will consider solutions that are cloud-based or hosted internal to the county with 
 no preference. Selection will be based on the ability of the vendor to meet the County's 
 mandatory security and infrastructure requirements in the RFP. 

47. Would a 3 year, paid up front, be an option for deal structure? 

 A proposer’s initial offer should be based on the most favorable terms available. The County 
 may, however, have discussion with those proposers that it deems in its discretion to fall within 
 a competitive range. It may also request revised pricing offers from such proposers and make 
 an award and/or conduct negotiations thereafter.  

48. What are you referring to when you state SQL data-manipulation artifacts? 

 Ability to connect to derive lineage from SQL scripts or stored procedures. 

49. What do you mean by privacy classification? 

 Ability to classify data based on defined data privacy classifications and policies. 



50. What are your needs for multilingual? 

 Currently English is the only language requirement. 

51. What do you mean by customer bazar for connectors? 

 Wake County has the expectation that the proposed solution would be flexible enough to 
 support integration with various 3rd party systems and data sources. Asking if there is a 
 marketplace for 3rd party connectors to application if not native to the application. 

52. What do you mean by data preparation tools? 

 Includes business intelligence tools with ability to combine, clean, transform and curate 
 datasets. 

53. Please share what type of Data Catalogs you use today? 

 We currently use a homegrown data catalog. 

54. What Business Intelligence Tools do you use today? 

 Multiple business intelligence tools are in use today. Proposals should specify the business 
 intelligence tools that the proposed solution will support. 

55. Are you looking for a Data Catalog or MDM? 

 The data governance platform would house the metadata, including a searchable data catalog, 
 data dictionary, data lineage, and data quality ratings simplifying the process of finding, trusting, 
 and using data. 

56. How will Wake County evaluate (e.g., weight) the proposals? Will Wake County provide notification 
of the outcome regardless? Is a proof of concept expected or desired before a final selection?  

 A weighted analysis of the evaluation criteria will be utilized to determine the vendor that 
 represents the best value solution for Wake County. Product demonstrations will be requested 
 for a limited selection of respondents. Proof of concept may be required prior to final selection 
 depending on demonstration outcomes.  All vendors will be notified at the end of the process. 

57. Is it required to provide a response that prices each of the items you have listed as a need or can 
you pick certain ones?  

 We would like to see the costs of a system that meets all requirements; however, it is 
 acceptable to note the cost of the base system as well as the cost of each additional  
 features\module required to meet the full requirements. It is also acceptable to include  pricing 
 for features\modules we have not specifically requested as options. All pricing must provide 
 “guaranteed pricing” for twelve (12) months from the award of contract. 

58. Is the intent here to establish a catalog of products that will then be purchased when needed via 
purchase orders?  

 We would like to see the costs of a system that meets all requirements; however, it is 
 acceptable to note the cost of the base system as well as the cost of each additional 
 features\module required to meet the full requirements. It is also acceptable to include pricing 
 for features\modules we have not specifically requested as options. All pricing must provide 
 “guaranteed pricing” for twelve (12) months from the award of contract. 

 



59. Is Wake County seeking responses from solution manufacturers, channel partners or both?  

 Both are welcome to respond. 

60. How many rounds will there be for this RFP? Will you down select and then look to receive 
presentations?  

 Wake County reserves the right to bring in in all, or a subset of respondents for demos. There is 
 no guarantee we will bring in any vendor, but we may bring one or multiple vendors in for 
 demos. 

61. Is there is a certain tool in mind for this RFP or is Wake County starting a new evaluation to look for 
the best solution(s) to meet all requirements?  

 New evaluation to look for the best solution to meet all requirements. 

62. Are you expecting to narrow the list for in person/vendor presentations?  

 Wake County reserves the right to bring in in all, or a subset of respondents for demos. There is 
 no guarantee we will bring in any vendor, but we may bring one or multiple vendors in for 
 demos. 

63. After the Bid opens, what are the steps involved before a proposal is selected?  

 After the proposal due date, proposals will be evaluated. Wake County reserves the right to 
 bring in in all, or a subset of respondents for demos. There is no guarantee we will bring in any 
 vendor, but we may bring one or multiple vendors in for demos. 

64. If possible, can you provide a general audience of who is on the selection committee?  

 The Evaluation Team will be comprised of IS subject matter experts. The team will be 
 responsible for the evaluation and rating of the proposals, software solution demonstrations 
 and for conducting interviews during the optional site visits. 

65. Is there a price bracket/budget associated with this RFP?  

 There is an approved budget for this project, however we will not disclose the specifics of 
 `that budget. A proposer’s initial offer should, therefore, be based on the most favorable terms 
 available. The County may, however, have discussion with those proposers that it deems in its 
 discretion to fall within a competitive range. It may also request revised pricing offers from 
 such proposers and make an award and/or conduct negotiations thereafter.  

66. Have there been any previous partners/vendors engaged to help dictate the RFP published (Demos, 
POCs, Executive Briefings) or are the requirements/priority items from the Wake County IT team, 
solely?  

 The requirements are based on the Wake County IS team and our partner technological 
 research and consulting firm's recommendations on functional requirements of a data 
 governance tool. 

67. Are there any page limitations to Vendor responses for Technical Approach?  

 No limitations. 

68. Is Wake County interested in financing options? If so, can bidders provide financing offers?  

 There is no intent to lease/finance. 



69. Does Wake County intend to invest in the technology as an upfront capital expenditure? Or annual 
payment option spanning the length of the proposed agreement (3 years with annual payments)?  

 We are open to either option and will weigh overall terms with budget capacity. 

70. Is Wake County expecting to lease/finance an enterprise agreement proposed by a manufacturer, 
sold through a value-added reseller?  

 There is no intent to lease/finance. 

71. Can you elaborate on the depth of professional services that you may desire?  

 Tool implementation and training. 

72. The RFP mentions SaaS solutions, is SaaS a requirement or will software on internal Wake County 
hardware be considered in proposals?  

 Wake County will consider solutions that are cloud-based or hosted internal to the county with 
 no preference. Selection will be based on the ability of the vendor to meet the County's 
 mandatory security and infrastructure requirements in the RFP. 

73. What is the size of the total data footprint that would be deemed in scope for governance? Please 
describe in any form/detail possible. Ex: Number of sites, number of TBs of files, number of 
databases, number of SaaS/Cloud platforms, etc.  

 Data sources are still in the identification phase and are unable to be accurately estimated at 
 this time. Use minimum as 1 TB and please have proposal identify how increased would be 
 performed. 

74. What data repositories/Cloud Service providers are you currently using? I.E Windows, NetApp, 
O365, AWS, Google Drive  

 Wake County's technological environment will not be disclosed publicly. As part of the review 
 process, vendors will be given that information on an individual and as needed basis. Wake 
 County has the expectation that the proposed solution would be flexible enough to support 
 integration with various 3rd party systems and data sources. 

 a. How many users per platform?  
 All users will be internal. We will have approximately 4 admins and 10 contributors. Viewers are 
 yet to be determined. 

 
 

 

 

 

 


